
St. Andrews West 

A Walking Tour  

Located on the site of the original log church 

which was built in 1784, this replica was 

erected in 1991. The pioneer graveyard is the 

burial site of Ontarioôs First Premier John 

Sandfield MacDonald as well as that of 

explorer Simon Fraser. The oldest 

tombstone still legible is that of Alexander 

McDonell whose epitaph reads ñkilled by the 

falling of a treeò ï 1799. This stone can be 

viewed near the south wall of the log church. 

The parish opened a second cemetery in the 

1870s on ñthe hillò south of the present 

church. The pioneer cemetery was closed to 

burials in 1913.  

The Parish soon outgrew the log church and 

work commenced in 1798 on the second 

church. This stone structure was completed 

in 1801. Much of the contributions towards 

The Parish of St. Andrews 

(named for the Patron Saint of 

Scotland) was founded in 1784 

by 38 families of Scottish 

descent. These families (United 

Empire Loyalists) had travelled 

north from New York State 

after the American Revolution 

and were granted land by the 

British Crown in return for 

their military service.  

the building of this church came from 

partners of the Northwest Fur Trade 

Company who included Simon Fraser and 

ñSpanish John McDonellò.  

For individual or group tours please  

call one of the contacts listed below: 
 

 

John Sandfield MacDonald/Quinnôs 

Inn located at the intersection of Hwy 

138 and County Road 18 was built in 

1865 by John Sandfield MacDonald as 

a hotel and tavern. It served as a stage 

coach stop as Road 18 (commonly 

known as the Kingôs Road or Dundas 

Street) was the main route of that time 

between Montreal and Toronto. The 

building was operated as an inn until 

1895 when it was then purchased by the 

Masterson family. This began the 

buildingôs history as a general store. 

The Quinn family ran it as a general 

store from the 1920s until 1989 after 

which it was restored as an inn. It now 

operates as a restaurant, pub and 

banquet hall. 



 
St. Andrews third and present church 

constructed between 1858 and 1864. 

The steeple of the church was built between 

1879 and 1890 and rises to a height of 212ô. 

The ñhigh altarò in the centre is dedicated to 

St. Andrew. The west altar to St. John The 

Evangelist and the East Altar to the Blessed 

Virgin Mary. Statues of the Apostles are 

located at ceiling height in the centre aisle. 

The building of this church was 

administered by the pastor of the time ï 

Father George Hay who served the parish 

for 40 years and died here in 1876. His 

remains are buried under the east altar 

St. Andrews Parish Rectory built 1880s. 

This dwelling replaced the first parish 

house which was built 1838. 

Spanish Altar 

 

along with those of his predecessor Father 

William Fraser. The chalice that Fr. Hay 

had crafted from his collection of Spanish 

silver coins is still used in the celebration 

of the Mass today in St. Andrews. 

The stone church included the beautiful 

tabernacle known in the parish as ñThe 

Spanish Altar.ò This altar (crafted in the 

1790s in Montreal) can still be viewed in the 

sacristy of the present church.  

The ñRound Stone Churchò now serves as a 

parish hall.  

The first convent in St. Andrews was 

constructed in 1848 west of the church 

during the tenure of Fr. George Hay and 

was administered by the Grey Nuns of 

Ottawa. This convent burned in the early 

1900s and the second convent was built 

on the same site and opened in 1909. The 

convent was served also by the Sisters of 

Notre Dame of Montreal and then, 

commencing in 1918, by the Sisters of St. 

Joseph of Peterborough. It served as a 

convent and boarding school until the 

departure of the sisters in 1976. The 

building was saved from demolition 

through the efforts of The Cornwall 

Township Historical Society and the 

Township of Cornwall in 1977. It now 

houses a branch of the S.D. &G Library as 

well as a museum which is open to the 

public on Sunday afternoon during the 

months of July and August. 

 

 

 


